BOARD OF REGENTS
for
KENTUCKY STATE UNIVERSITY

Regular Meeting of the Board of Regents
Friday, April 19, 2024
10:00 a.m. EDT

Julian M. Carroll Academic Services Building, 2nd Floor
400 East Main Street
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601



KENTUCKY STATE UNIVERSITY BOARD OF REGENTS
REGULAR MEETING

*¥* Meeting Will be Conducted in Person and by Teleconference ***

Friday, April 19, 2024
10:00 a.m. EDT

Board of Regents Room
Julian M. Carroll Academic Services Building, 2nd Floor
400 East Main Street
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601
(Primary Physical Location)

Zoom Link: https:/ /kysu.zoom.us /s /94849902045
Webinar ID: 948 4990 2045
One Tap Mobile: US: +13126266799,,94849902045# or +16468769923,,94849902045#

5.

AGENDA
Call to Order Regent Tammi Dukes
Board Chair
Roll Call Mr. Zachary Atwell
Board Secretary
General Counsel
Approval of Agenda Chair Dukes
Consent Agenda Chair Dukes
A. Minutes from Previous Board and Committee Meetings
i February 16, 2024, Board Meeting Minutes
ii. March 7, 2024, Board Meeting Minutes
iii. April 1, 2024, Finance & Audit Committee Meeting Minutes
iv.  April 2, 2024, Investment & Advancement Committee Meeting Minutes
v. April 3, 2024, Academic Affairs Committee Meeting Minutes
vi. April 4, 2024, Student Affairs Committee Meeting Minutes
Information Items
A. University Senate Reports
i.  Faculty Senate Report Dr. Helen Smith

Faculty Senate President

ii.  Staff Senate Report Mr. Delandual Conwell

Staff Senate President

iii. SGA Report Regent Savion Briggs

SGA President



6.

7.

8.

B. Finance & Administration

i

il.

iii.

Audit Updates

Personnel Updates

Holiday Schedule

C. Governance

i

il.

New Policies

Policy Revisions

Action Items

A. Academic Affairs

—-

1.

1.

iv.

vi.

Approval of Dual Credit Tuition Waiver
Approval to Create a “Welcome Back” Institutional Aid Scholarship
for Previously Enrolled KSU Adult Learners

Approval to Create the Kentucky State University Center for
Economic Education and Financial Literacy

Approval of Resolution to Confer Earned Academic Degrees
Approval of Resolution to Confer Posthumous Degree

Approval of Resolution to Confer Honorary Degrees

B. Finance & Administration

il.

1il.

Approval of Personnel Actions

Approval of Expenditures for Online Program Marketing
and Enrollment Management Contract

Approval of Foundation MOU and Resolution

Closing Remarks

Adjournment

Ms. Vicki Dunaway
VP, Finance & Administration & CFO

Ms. Candace Raglin
Director of Human Resources

Director Raglin

Attorney Atwell

Dr. Michael D. Dailey
Interim Provost

Provost Dailey

Dr. Gary R. Stratton
School of Business Chair
Provost Dailey
Provost Dailey

Provost Dailey

Director Raglin

Ms. Fran Pinkston
Purchasing Director

M:t. Michael R. DeCourcy
Interim VP, Institutional Advancement
and External Relations

Chair Dukes

Chair Dukes




II.

III.

IV.

KENTUCKY STATE UNIVERSITY BOARD OF REGENTS
REGULAR MEETING

*** Meeting Was Conducted in Person and by Teleconference **%*

February 16, 2024
10:00 a.m. EST

Board of Regents Room
Julian M. Carroll Academic Services Building, 2nd Floor
400 East Main Street
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601
(Primary Physical Location)

MINUTES

Call To Order
The Board’s Chair, Regent Tammi Dukes, called the meeting to order at 10:03 a.m.
Roll Call

The Board’s Secretary, Zachary Atwell, called the roll:

Regent Tammi Dukes, Chair Present
Regent Michael Adams, Jr., Vice Chair Present
Regent Edward Fields Present
Regent Ernie Fletcher, MD Present
Regent Edward Hatchett, Esq. Present
Regent Jason Moseley Present
Regent Charles Moyer, PhD Present
Regent Robert Ramsey, Sr. Present
Regent Herman Walston, EdD Present
Regent Savion Briggs Present

All ten Regents were present and in attendance at roll call.
Approval of the Agenda

MOTION by Regent Walston:
Move the Board to approve the agenda of the February 16, 2024, meeting of the Board of Regents.
Seconded by Regent Hatchett and passed without dissent.

Closed Session
A. Pending and Possible Litigation

Pursuant to KRS 61.810(1)(c), the Board moved to closed session to discuss pending and possible
litigation.

MOTION by Regent Fields:



Move the Board to enter closed session to discuss pending and possible litigation.
Seconded by Regent Ramsey and passed without dissent.

Consent Agenda

When the Board reconvened from its closed session, Chair Dukes announced that no action was taken
while in closed session. She then called for a motion to enter open session.

MOTION by Regent Fields:
Move the Board to enter open session.
Seconded by Regent Walston and passed without dissent.

Next, Chair Dukes presented all Consent Agenda items. Before calling for a motion to approve the
Consent Agenda, Chair Dukes invited Regents’ questions and comments.

Regent Moyer shared his observations regarding the KSU Foundation, including excerpts from a
certified letter that he had recently received from the KSU Foundation’s Executive Secretary, Mr.
Donald Lyons. He also discussed recommendations for renegotiating the MOU between the University
and the KSU Foundation.

Chair Walston asked whether any conversation had occurred between the Foundation and the
University prior to the development of the recommendations presented by Regent Moyer.

Regent Adams sought clarification regarding the number of meeting requests that had been extended
to the Foundation.

Regent Fletcher asked whether the Foundation receives any federal funds and inquired as to what the
Foundation’s audit requirements might be, based upon the sources of funding.

Regent Walston inquired whether the Foundation’s audits occur on a yearly basis.

Regent Fletcher wondered about the Foundation’s lack of fidelity to the University and contributors
to the Foundation, finding it odd that they are collecting money “with Kentucky State on it” but
deferring it for purposes and individuals not related to KSU.

Regent Hatchett stated that it was his understanding that in the past KSU had turned over to the
Foundation certain Covid-related federal funds and queried whether the federal audit requirement
follow those funds into the Foundation, and further inquired whether this was the only incidence of
the Foundation handling federal dollars. General Counsel Atwell and President Akakpo responded that
the Foundation does hold some Title 111 funds on behalf of the University.

Regent Fletcher asked whether the Foundation’s audit shed any light onto the basis for which 35% can
be charged to the University under the current MOU.

Regent Ramsey requested that the recommendations for renegotiating the MOU include a requirement
that the Foundation provide the University with quarterly financial updates rather than annual reports.



Hearing no further questions or discussion, Chair Dukes read all the Consent Agenda items, s#pra, and
called for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda:

MOTION by Regent Moseley:
Approve the Consent Agenda.
Seconded by Regent Fletcher and passed without dissent.

A. Actions Recommended by the Investment & Advancement Committee

i Approval of Board Order Authorizing the President to Renegotiate the MOU with
the KSU Foundation, Inc.

ii. Approval to Issue an RFP for Investment Management Services
B. Actions Recommended by Academic Affairs Committee
i Approval of Revised Faculty Evaluation Policy

C. Minutes from Previous Board and Committee Meetings

i November 21, 2023, Finance & Audit Committee Meeting Minutes

ii. November 27, 2023, Board Retreat Minutes

iii. November 28, 2023, Board Meeting Minutes

iv. December 18, 2023, Board Meeting Minutes

V. January 29, 2024, Finance & Audit Committee Meeting Minutes

vi. January 30, 2024, Investment & Advancement Committee Meeting Minutes
vii. January 31, 2024, Academic Affairs Committee Meeting Minutes

viii. February 1, 2024, Student Affairs Committee Meeting Minutes

ix. February 2, 2024, Executive Committee Meeting Minutes

D. Approval of Resolutions of Appreciation
VL Information Items
A. President’s Report

President Akakpo began his presentation by thanking the Regents for their support over the last
seven months and then highlighting successes within the University’s Nursing program. Next, he
shared updates regarding the University’s capital requests to the General Assembly and reported
on efforts to identify the amount of Land Grant funding that has actually been spent. President
Akakpo also expressed concern regarding significant HVAC-related issues that had occurred
during a recent bout of extreme cold weather.

Regent Walston asked whether Land Grant funds could be used bring the Rosenwald Building up
to date, relative to the HVAC failure that President Akakpo had described.



Regent Fletcher sought clarification as to the exact amount the House approved on capital as well
as the additional amount that President Akakpo would be seeking from the Senate for asset

preservation.

University Senate Reports

i.

ii.

Faculty Senate Report

This agenda item was presented by Dr. Helen Smith, Faculty Senate President. Dr. Smith
reported recent activities of each of the four Faculty Senate Committees. The Professional
Concerns Committee continues to field questions from faculty regarding the resumption
of the tenure and promotion process. Dr. Smith also noted concerns relative to the faculty
evaluation process. Faculty senators have just received a copy of the most recently
completed salary study and look forward to learning when and how the study will impact
the University’s salary guidelines and current salaries. In closing, Dr. Smith stated that
investing in campus human resources—faculty and staff—is at least as important as
investment in facilities.

Staff Senate Report

Ms. Keymia Herve, Staff Senate Treasurer, presented this agenda item. Ms. Herve
reported that an election is underway to select a new Staff Senate. Despite logistical
challenges, the Staff Senate has been able to adapt its voting procedures to ensure an
inclusive and accessible nomination process. Voting will commence once all nominations
have been received. Following the selection of the Staff Senate, officers will be elected.
Ms. Herve remarked that the resilience and commitment of the University’s staff members
has been crucial in navigating challenges, and she is confident that, despite the current
circumstances, the process will be successful.

Regent Ramsey queried whether there was a hard deadline by which Staff Senate members
and officers would be chosen. Ms. Herve replied that the process would be completed by
February 28.

SGA Report

Regent Savion Briges, SGA President, presented this agenda item. The SGA continues
to serve as a platform for student voices to be heard, and it has recently been involved in
many activities to advance KSU’s campus. Regent Briggs identified those activities,
including reaching out to students regarding student town hall meetings; working with Dr.
Stephanie Mayberry, Vice Provost of Student Affairs, to re-open the Student Center game
room and re-establish Walmart runs; and participating in extensive community
engagement events. SGA elections will be conducted within the next two months,
coinciding with the SGA’s Leaders of Tomorrow project.

Regent Walston commented that he would like to see opportunities for KSU students and
student leaders to serve as mentors in the University’s Promising Youth Center for
Excellence program.



C. Academic Affairs

All Academic Affairs information items were presented by Dr. Michael Dailey, Interim Provost
and VP, Academic and Student Affairs, and Dr. Scott Wicker, Interim Vice Provost, Academic
Affairs.

i National Student Clearinghouse Partnership

Dr. Wicker reported that the Master Service Agreement has been approved by the
University’s General Counsel and has been updated from the 2021 version to reflect new
content. The agreement is now awaiting the President’s signature and identification of the
University’s major point of contact. Dr. Wicker highlighted several new enhancements
that will now be available.

Chair Dukes queried whether an effort or initiative had ever occurred to digitize the
University’s physical records.

ii. Management Improvement Plan Updates

Next, Dr. Wicker and Dr. Dailey discussed the status of individual MIP Objectives and
deliverables, including an overview of policies currently being updated as required by the
MIP.

Regent Fields requested Dr. Wicker to explain the Credit for Life Program.

As to MIP Objective 4.13.1, Regent Fletcher inquired whether the minimum class size of
15 students applies to both graduate and undergraduate classes.

Regent Moyer asked whether the University currently has a different tuition structure
between graduate and undergraduate courses.

Regent Moyer further queried what proportion of scholarships granted by the University
come from the KSU Foundation, from the University’s operating budget, or from gifts to
the University for scholarships that do not go through the Foundation.

Moving ahead, Dr. Wicker also identified MIP objectives tied to additional funding for
the University upon their completion, noting that some of today’s action items related to

those objectives will unlock additional funding for the University.

Regent Fletcher inquired whether pro formas or break-even points had been calculated
relative to the online learning program and if so, what the projected numbers were.

iii. Academic Calendar

Dr. Dailey and Dr. Wicker highlighted several key dates in the upcoming 20242025 Fall
and Spring Academic Calendars, noting an emphasis on long-range planning.



VII.

iv.

Regent Walston asked how soon the calendar would be finalized and whether staff and
academic calendars would be aligned moving forward.

KY-WYV Louis Stokes Alliance for Minority Participation (LSAMP) Update

Dr. Wicker explained the mission of the KY-WV LSAMP consortium and identified
recent updates and developments. Dr. Wicker noted the importance of KSU investment
in this consortium and partnership as the University moves forward with its vision for the
future.

Gray Associates Decision Intelligence Platform User Access

Dr. Wicker described data and resources available to Regents while using this platform
and provided login instructions.

D. Finance & Administration

ii.

ii.

Expenses Report

This agenda item was presented by Dr. Wendy Dixie, Interim VP, Finance & Business
Affairs, and Ms. Tonya Walker, Controller. Dr. Dixie directed the Regents to the Board
materials that had been provided in advance of the meeting, specifically those regarding
expenditures over $100,000 since November 2023. She then invited any questions or
comments.

Chair Dukes asked whether the expenditures were coming out of the normal operating
account or a grant fund.

Report on Student Account Collections

This agenda item was presented by Controller Walker. As of Feb 15, $20.7M has been
collected, leaving an outstanding accounts receivable balance of $6.5M, with anticipated
aid coming in at $2.5M. Therefore, the outstanding balance is projected to be $4M.
However, 130 students are currently enrolled in a payment plan, and this is expected to
bring in an additional $1M; therefore, the outstanding student accounts receivable is
probably closer to $3M.

Personnel Update
This agenda item was presented by Ms. Candace Raglin, Director of Human Resources.
Ms. Raglin presented positions that have been filled since the last Board meeting,

separated out by E&G and Land Grant.

Regent Walston queried whether Upward Bound was a Title III program and sought
clarification as to the source of funding for the Upward Bound Director’s position.

Action Items

A. Academic Affairs



ii.

iii.

Approval of Restructuring of Colleges

Approval of Tuition Rates for May, Summer, and Winter Sessions
Approval of Dual Credit Tuition Rate Increase

Approval of Manufacturing Engineering Technology Program
Approval of Biological and Agricultural Engineering Program
Approval of Online Cybersecurity Program

Approval of Credit for Life Policy Update

Approval of Center for Global Learning & International Services
Approval of Distinct Structure for Online Education

Approval of tuition Rates for KYSU Online

Approval to Adopt Faculty Senate Revisions to the General Education Core
Courses

Chair Dukes stated that the Academic Affairs action items were provided to the Board
for review seven days in advance of the meeting; therefore, unless there were any
comments or questions, she would ask the Board to approve the Academic Affairs action
items.

Regent Fields posed a question regarding the College of Agriculture, Health and Natural
Resources’ organizational chart.

Regent Walston inquired why there did not appear to be a foreign language or sign
language requirement.

Regent Moyer asked whether some courses appearing in the University’s catalogue are not
being currently offered and if so, how they are identified.

Hearing no further questions, Chair Dukes re-identified the list of Academic Affairs action
items, s#pra, then called for a motion for approval.

MOTION by Regent Walston: Approve the Academic Affairs action items.

Seconded by Regent Fields and passed without dissent.

. Finance & Administration

Approval of Cost Increase to Combs Hall Renovation Project
Approval of Personnel Actions

Approval of Bucks for Brains Endowment Match for an Endowed Professor in
STEM+H

Like the Academic Affairs action items, Chair Dukes stated that the Finance &
Administration action items were provided to the Board seven days in advance of the
meeting; therefore, she would ask the Board to approve the F&A action items, absent any
questions or comments.

For the record, Chair Dukes reiterated that the Finance & Administration action items
were: (1) approval of the cost increase to the Combs Hall renovation project; (2) approval



VIII.

IX.

of personnel actions; and (3) approval of the Bucks for Brains endowment match for an
endowed professor in STEM+H.

Regent Walston requested that the funding source for the Upward Bound Director’s
position be changed, subject to the Board’s prior conversation that had occurred during
informational agenda item 6(D)(iii) (Finance & Administration Personnel Update).

MOTION by Regent Briggs:
Move the Board to approve all Finance & Administration action items as noted.
Seconded by Regent Hatchett and passed without dissent.

C. Athletics

Approval of Resolution of Appreciation

Chair Dukes announced that KSU would be holding a special press conference on
February 17, 2024, to honor Mr. Gerald Cunningham, a graduate of KSU and an
outstanding member of the KSU Men’s Basketball Team from 1973 to 1977. She further
noted that the Board has been asked to honor Mr. Cunningham by approving a Resolution
of Appreciation for him. AD Ramon Johnson presented this action item.

No separate motion or vote was required to approve this Resolution of Appreciation, as
it was included in Consent Agenda item 5(D).

D. Governance

e

Approval of Board Training Policy
Approval of Revised Policy on Policies

These agenda items were presented by Chair Dukes.

MOTION by Regent Walston:
Move the Board to approve the Governance action items.
Seconded by Regent Fields and passed without dissent.

Closing Remarks

Prior to offering closing remarks, Chair Dukes invited Regent Briggs to share additional information
that had not been included in his SGA Update. Regent Briggs stated that KSU’s SGA has been invited
to the White House by Vice President Kamala Harris, which drew a round of applause from the

Regents and audience members.

In closing, Chair Dukes extended her gratitude to her fellow Regents, along with the University’s
faculty and staff, for their dedication and contributions. She also thanked CPE for their ongoing
collaboration with KSU and shared her deepest appreciation for the students of KSU.

Adjournment

MOTION by Regent Walston:
Move the Board to adjourn.

Seconded by Regent Moyer and passed without dissent.



The meeting adjourned at 12:26 p.m.

Submitted by:

Zachary Atwell, Secretary Regent Tammi Dukes, Chair
Board of Regents Board of Regents

Kentucky State University Kentucky State University

Approved with no corrections

Approved with corrections



II.

III.

IV.

KENTUCKY STATE UNIVERSITY BOARD OF REGENTS
SPECIAL MEETING

*** Meeting Was Conducted in Person and by Teleconference **%*

Thursday, March 7, 2024
1:30 p.m. EST

Board of Regents Room
Julian M. Carroll Academic Services Building, 2nd Floor
400 East Main Street
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601
(Primary Physical Location)

MINUTES

Call To Order
The Board’s Chair, Regent Tammi Dukes, called the meeting to order at 1:31 p.m.
Roll Call

The Board’s Secretary, Zachary Atwell, called the roll:

Regent Tammi Dukes, Chair Present
Regent Michael Adams, Jr., Vice Chair Not Present
Regent Edward Fields Present
Regent Ernie Fletcher, MD Present
Regent Edward Hatchett, Esq. Not Present
Regent Jason Moseley Present
Regent Charles Moyer, PhD Present
Regent Robert Ramsey, Sr. Present
Regent Herman Walston, EdD Present
Regent Savion Briggs Present

At least six (6) Regents were in attendance and present at roll call. A quorum was therefore established.
Approval of the Agenda

MOTION by Regent Moseley:
Move the Board to approve the agenda of the March 7, 2024, meeting of the Board of Regents.
Seconded by Regent Fields and passed without dissent.

Action Items
A. Approval to Increase FY 25 Tuition

This agenda item was presented by Dr. Wendy Dixie, Interim VP, Finance & Business Affairs.
Dr. Dixie stated that approval was being sought to increase tuition by 2% during FY 25.



V.

Regent Fields asked when the increase would take effect.

Regent Fletcher queried whether it was typical practice for non-resident undergraduate students
to pay more tuition than non-resident graduate students.

Regent Walston inquired how the rate increase would affect students wishing to carry more than
12 hours a semester, or for students in the military.

MOTION by Regent Moyer:
Move the Board to approve the FY25 tuition increase.
Seconded by Regent Walston and passed without dissent.

. Approval of Master Agreement Expenditures

This agenda item was presented by Dr. Stephanie Mayberry, Vice Provost for Student Affairs.

Dr. Mayberry explained that additional housing would be necessary to accommodate students
during the upcoming academic year as the University seeks to increase its enrollment, and due to
upcoming renovations to several existing residence halls. Subsequently, the contract being
presented for approval was for 27 hotel rooms at the Bluegrass Inn.

Chair Dukes inquired as to the distance between Bluegrass Inn and KSU’s campus.

Regent Walston asked whether the hotel rooms would offer inside or outside entrances. Dr.
Mayberry responded that the hotel rooms had outside entrances. Regent Walston then inquired
whether Dr. Mayberry felt that outside entrances would pose a problem in terms of being able to
monitor students’ behavior. He also asked whether KSU would provide transportation between
the hotel and campus.

Regent Briggs queried whether the University had ever rented rooms from the Bluegrass Inn in
the past.

Regent Walston asked for clarification regarding whether Bluegrass Inn would provide KSU
students with breakfast.

Chair Dukes inquired whether the University still had an agreement with Capital Plaza.

Regent Briggs asked whether it would be less expensive for students to live on or off campus and
inquired into the process for students being selected to live at the hotel.

Regent Walston asked whether additional space would be available at Bluegrass Inn, if needed.

Regent Briggs asked whether Chandler Hall would be undergoing construction and further
inquired as to student room locations at Bluegrass Inn, asking how security would be provided for
students staying at the hotel.

MOTION by Regent Fields:
Move the Board to approve the Master Agreement expenditures.
Seconded by Regent Moyer and passed without dissent.

Adjournment

MOTION by Regent Fields:



Move the Board to adjourn.
Seconded by Regent Briggs and passed without dissent.

The meeting was adjourned at 1:52 p.m.

Submitted by:

Zachary Atwell, Secretary Regent Tammi Dukes, Chair
Board of Regents Board of Regents

Kentucky State University Kentucky State University

Approved with no corrections

Approved with corrections



II.

III.

Iv.

KENTUCKY STATE UNIVERSITY BOARD OF REGENTS
FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE
REGULAR MEETING

*** Meeting Was Conducted in Person and by Teleconference **%*

Monday, April 1, 2024
10:00 a.m. EDT

Board of Regents Room
Julian M. Carroll Academic Services Building, 2nd Floor
400 East Main Street
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601
(Primary Physical Location)

MINUTES
seokskokskok sk ok sk ok ok sk koK

Call To Order
The Committee’s Chair, Regent Edward Hatchett, Esq., called the meeting to order at 10:07 a.m.
Roll Call

The Board’s Secretary, Zachary Atwell, called the roll:

Regent Edward Hatchett, Chair Present
Regent Ernie Fletcher, Co-Chair Present
Regent Tammi Dukes Present
Regent Robert Ramsey, Sr. Not Present (Joined After Roll Call)

At least three (3) Regents were in attendance and present at roll call. A quorum was therefore
established. Regent Ramsey joined shortly after roll call.

Approval of the Agenda

MOTION by Regent Ramsey:

Move the Committee to approve the agenda of the April 1, 2024, meeting of the Finance & Audit
Committee.

Seconded by Regent Fletcher and passed without dissent.

External Audit Update and Plans

This agenda item was presented by Mr. Allen Norvell, Director of Blue & Co. LLC. Mr. Norvell began
by discussing progress on the FY22 audit, specifically addressing the status of the financial audit as well
as financial aid and non-financial aid components of the compliance audit. He noted that several FY21
findings were repeated in FY22, as expected, simply because there was not an opportunity at the
conclusion of the FY21 audit to address those findings during FY22.



Next, Mr. Norvell shared a draft of the FY22 audit with committee members. Chair Hatchett inquired
when the final version will be completed and available. Mr. Norvell responded that it would be available
on April 9.

Mr. Norvell continued his presentation with highlights of the FY22 audit findings. Regent Dukes asked
whether anything else besides the outstanding legal letters and internal quality review would prevent
the Board from receiving the final report by April 9. Mr. Norvell stated that nothing else would impede
delivery by the April 9 date. Regent Dukes suggested to Chair Hatchett that the Committee convene
for a special meeting after April 9 to review the final report.

Chair Hatchett requested that Mr. Norvell elaborate on the certificates of participation.
Regent Moyer inquired into the maturity of the long-term debt and the state loan.

Regent Fletcher queried whether Mr. Norvell had reviewed any agreement establishing the debenture
from the University to CPE. Mr. Notrvell responded that he was not awatre of any documents other
than HB 250 and the MIP. Regent Fletcher asked Chair Hatchett whether it was unusual to have a loan
between agencies without specific documentation setting forth terms and conditions. Mr. Travis
Powell, VP and General Counsel for CPE, joined the meeting and provided clarification as to
repayment terms regarding the $23M loan received from the State.

Mr. Norvell concluded the FY22 audit presentation and opened the floor for questions. Hearing none,
he moved forward with an update on the FY23 audit, including next steps to be taken.

Chair Hatchett asked Mr. Norvell when he expected to have the FY23 audit completed.

Regent Dukes sought clarification that Mr. Norvell had not yet received the FY23 ledgers. Mr. Norvell
responded affirmatively. Regent Dukes queried when the audit would be ready once Mr. Norvell has
the ledgers. Mr. Norvell responded that he did not have an answer to that.

Internal Audit Update

Mr. Benjamin Martin, Senior Manager, CBIZ, presented this agenda item. Mr. Martin introduced Ms.
Megan Young and Ms. Miranda Murray. Ms. Young began the update with a discussion of
accomplishments to date, including the completion of the financial aid and fixed asset existence audits,
then explained the next steps to be taken.

Mr. Martin joined the presentation, stating that management had determined that a Banner license
review and Sodexo invoice review were not needed. Chair Hatchett inquired whether it was fair to say
there would be no Sodexo overhang regarding this work since they are no longer a contractor with the
University.

Regent Dukes asked Ms. Young whether she also could summarize the status of remediation for each
audit finding, inquiring whether the University is on track for resolving issues or whether this is just a
list of findings for which no action has been taken.

Ms. Young concluded the presentation with an internal audit timeline update.



VI.

VII.

VIII.

IX.

“Tell It” Hotline Report

The Board’s Chair, Regent Tammi Dukes, presented this agenda item. Regent Dukes remarked that
the “Tell It” six complaints have been received. Of those complaints, three were related to ethics, two
were related to health and safety concerns, and one was categorized as “other.” Reporting was done
primarily through email, the web-related interface, or live telephone conversation. Most of the issues
were found to be unsubstantiated or were under investigation. To date, no serious issues were
identified; though some of the reports were alarming, they were investigated and were considered
unfounded or unverified. Currently, there is no comparative year-over-year or quarter-over-quarter
data to identify the types of incidents being reported, as the hotline was implemented in early 2023,

Budget to Actual Accounting Update

This agenda item was presented by Ms. Vicki Dunaway, VP for Finance & Administration and Chief
Financial Officer, and Mr. Justin Peach, Budget Director. President Akakpo introduced Ms. Dunaway,
who greeted committee members and shared her background.

Mr. Peach began with the E&G Budget to Actual as of February 29, 2024.

Chair Hatchett requested Mr. Peach to elaborate on the “Destiny and Legacy Tuition and Fees”
category, and further inquired whether a key could be provided to explain the components of each

category.

Next, Mr. Peach presented the Asset Preservation Budget to Actual and Auxiliary Budget to Actual,
noting that the University is on track to have a surplus from Auxiliary at the end of the year.

Ms. Dunaway concluded the presentation and confirmed that deliverables would be provided to Blue
and Co. within the next week.

Closing Remarks

Chair Hatchett thanked all committee members and presenters for their participation during the
meeting.
Adjournment

MOTION by Regent Dukes:
Move the Committee to adjourn.
Seconded by Regent Fletcher and passed without dissent.

The meeting was adjourned at 11:34 a.m.



Submitted by:

Zach Atwell, Secretary Regent Edward Hatchett, Esq., Chair
Board of Regents Finance & Audit Committee
Kentucky State University Board of Regents

Kentucky State University

Approved with no corrections

Approved with corrections



II.

III.

Iv.

KENTUCKY STATE UNIVERSITY BOARD OF REGENTS
INVESTMENT & ADVANCEMENT COMMITTEE
REGULAR MEETING

*** Meeting Was Conducted in Person and by Teleconference **%*

Tuesday, April 2, 2024
10:00 a.m. EDT

Board of Regents Room
Julian M. Carroll Academic Services Building, 2nd Floor
400 East Main Street
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601
(Primary Physical Location)

MINUTES
seokskokskok sk ok sk ok ok sk koK

Call To Order
The Committee’s Chair, Regent Chatles Moyer, PhD, called the meeting to order at 10:13 a.m.
Roll Call

The Board’s Secretary, Zachary Atwell, called the roll:

Regent Charles Moyer, Chair Present

Regent Michael Adams, Jr., Co-Chair Not Present

Regent Ernie Fletcher Not Present (present, but no response was provided)
Regent Edward Hatchett Present

Regent Jason Moseley Present

Regent Robert Ramsey, Sr. Present

Four (4) Regents were in attendance and present at roll call. A quorum was therefore established. Due
to technical difficulties, Regent Fletcher was unable to announce his presence during roll call.

Approval of the Agenda

MOTION by Regent Ramsey:

Move the Committee to approve the agenda of the April 2, 2024, meeting of the Investment &
Advancement Committee.

Seconded by Regent Hatchett and passed without dissent.

Presentation by the KSU Foundation, Inc.

Mr. Willie Peale, KSU Foundation Board of Trustees Chairman, appeared before the Committee and
offered remarks.

Chair Moyer opened the floor for questions following Mr. Peale’s remarks.



Regent Hatchett asked Mr. Peale to characterize his attitude towards the University’s decision to
renegotiate the MOU and the willingness of the Foundation to pursue that negotiation.

Chair Moyer sought perspective and clarification as to KSU Foundation Executive Secretary Mr.
Donald Lyons’ February letter to the Board indicating the Foundation’s ability to support educational
entities other than KSU, and further inquired as to the extent to which the Foundation has exercised
this discretion.

In response to Mr. Peal’s example of Toyota funding being used in the past for KSU engineering
students needing to complete their degrees elsewhere, Regent Dukes asked who determines which
students will be supported by those Toyota funds and who decides which institutions will be provided
those funds. Additionally, Regent Dukes queried whether the Toyota program was still in existence.
Mr. Peale replied that he was not prepared to field a general scope of questions but could timely follow
up with that information.

Regent Fields asked whether—aside from the situation Mr. Peale just described regarding engineering
students who begin their studies at KSU but finish elsewhere—the Foundation provides support
strictly for KSU students or if they also support students at other institutions, generally.

Regent Fields requested clarification as to whether a student seeking to attend EKU, for example,
could seek assistance from the Foundation even if they had never set foot on KSU’s campus to attend
classes.

Mr. Peale indicated that the Foundation would like to hold in abeyance the MOU renegotiation until
litigation is final. Regent Walston asked if it were possible to at least begin preliminary talks regarding
renegotiating the MOU between KSU and the Foundation. Mr. Peale responded that he thought work
could begin between the two agencies but that the MOU would not be signed without the Foundation’s
Board having an opportunity to review, revise, and submit the new MOU to their legal counsel. He
further stated that the Foundation would not be rushed to the table to address this issue.

President Akakpo sought clarification as to whether Mr. Peale stated that the Foundation is willing to
begin negotiation of the MOU. Mzr. Peale replied that the Foundation is receptive but would not sign
a renegotiated MOU until their lawsuit is finalized.

Chair Moyer thanked Mr. Peale for his willingness to meet with the Committee.

Ky. State Univ. Found., v. Frankfort Newsmedia, LL.C

Zachary Atwell, Board Secretary and General Counsel, presented this agenda item. Mr. Atwell
explained the procedural history of the case, including the recent ruling by the Kentucky Court of
Appeals.

Regent Fletcher inquired into the identity of the Foundation’s legal counsel and whether the cost for
attorneys’ fees is included in the Foundation’s financial report. Regent Fletcher further wondered
whether Foundation donors fully understood that their gifts and contributions might not be used solely
for the benefit of KSU, and why the Foundation was fighting the case so vigorously. A discussion
ensued whereby Regent Fletcher and Mr. Atwell compared the cost of the Foundation’s known legal
fees to the dollar amount of scholarships that had been granted to KSU students.



Regent Walston asked whether the new MOU would address the Foundation’s financial transparency
issues under discussion. President Akakpo reminded Regent Walston that based on Mr. Peale’s earlier
remarks, even if the MOU were renegotiated, the Foundation would not sign it until the litigation is

over.

VI. MOU Between KSU and KSU Foundation, Inc.
Chair Moyer presented this agenda item, reiterating that the current issue affecting the MOU
renegotiation is one of timing, as the Foundation wants to wait until the litigation is settled before
signing a new MOU. Chair Moyer recognized that both sides agree that a new MOU is needed,
suggested moving forward with a preliminary draft of what the Board thinks the MOU should look
like, and offered suggestions as to tone and content.
A discussion ensued as to how to best move forward with renegotiating a new MOU.
Regent Walston sought confirmation as to Mr. Peal’s prior comments that the Foundation would work
with KSU in moving the MOU negotiation process forward.
Regent Fletcher requested Mr. Atwell to comment on an anticipated time frame for the Foundation’s
appeals process. Regent Fletcher also queried as to whether the University had standing to submit an
advisory or amicus brief.

VII.  Closing Remarks
Chair Moyer observed that the meeting was an interesting opportunity to exchange views and stated
that he looks forward to moving the MOU ahead while the Foundation’s court proceedings also
progress.

VIII. Adjournment
MOTION by Regent Ramsey:
Move the Committee to adjourn.
Seconded by Regent Hatchett and passed without dissent.
The meeting was adjourned at 11:38 a.m.

Submitted by:

Zach Atwell, Secretary Charles Moyer, PhD, Chair

Board of Regents Investment & Advancement Committee

Kentucky State University Board of Regents

Kentucky State University



Approved with no corrections

Approved with corrections



II1.

III.

Iv.

KENTUCKY STATE UNIVERSITY BOARD OF REGENTS
ACADEMIC AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
REGULAR MEETING

*** Meeting Was Conducted in Person and by Teleconference **%*

Wednesday, April 3, 2024
10:00 a.m. EDT

Board of Regents Room
Julian M. Carroll Academic Services Building, 2nd Floor
400 East Main Street
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601
(Primary Physical Location)

MINUTES
seokokok ko kok ok sk ok ok sk koK

Call To Order
The Committee’s Chair, Regent Herman Walston, EdD, called the meeting to order at 10:05 a.m.
Roll Call

The Board’s Secretary, Zachary Atwell, called the roll:

Regent Herman Walston, Chair Present
Regent Charles Moyer, Co-Chair Present
Regent Ernie Fletcher Not Present
Regent Savion Briggs Present

Three (3) Regents were in attendance and present at roll call. A quorum was therefore established.
Approval of the Agenda

MOTION by Regent Moyer:

Move the Committee to approve the agenda of the April 3, 2024, regular meeting of the Academic
Affairs Committee.

Seconded by Regent Briggs and passed without dissent.

Information Items

All information items were presented by Dr. Michael Dailey, Interim Provost, and Dr. Scott Wicker,
Interim Vice Provost.

A. Update Regarding Student Performance
Dr. Wicker provided a comparison between Spring 2024 and Spring 2023 midterm grades as well

as a student academic performance analysis spanning 2019-2023. He also identified departmental
DFW rates from 2019-2023 and discussed DFW rate-related issues.



B. Spring 2024 Graduation Discussion

Dr. Wicker reported 327 students are eligible to participate in the graduation ceremony being held
on May 10. Due to the large number of graduates and families, the graduation ceremony is
currently scheduled to be held outside.

Regent Walston asked whether the number of students eligible for graduation might still increase.

Regent Hatchett sought additional information regarding high school students who had been
taking courses at KSU and were going to be graduating this spring.

Regent Briggs queried whether there were any updates regarding commencement speakers.

Regent Dukes inquired whether anything was being done to curb stepping and other actions that
distract from commencement. A deeper discussion followed regarding student celebrations during
the graduation ceremony.

C. Proposed Summer 2024 Course Offerings

Dr. Dailey reported that summer courses would be offered on campus and online. Also, the
transition to the new learning management system, Canvas, will be tested this summer before it is
fully rolled out in the fall. All classes, regardless of the semester or session, must still meet a
minimum enrollment of 15 students for the class to be held.

Regent Walston asked whether independent study courses would still be allowed since they do not
meet that 15-student minimum requirement.

D. Dual Credit Report and Future Plans

Dr. Wicker stated that the Dual Credit Office has met with over thirty high schools and reported
on specific high school partnerships. The Dual Credit Office received a mini grant from CPE to
host an on-campus event for dual credit students. Further, a four-week residential Summer STEM
Academy is being planned.

As to the mini grant from CPE, Chair Walston inquired whether it is to be used for planning and
orientation or for students to take courses. Chair Walston also queried whether students attending
the dual credit orientation would be coming from the high school partnerships that Dr. Wicker
had identified and whether multiple orientation sessions were being planned.

E. Accreditation Update

Dr. Wicker thanked the Committee for approving three substantive change prospectuses. He also
explained that the University’s accrediting body, SACSCOC, has placed KSU on warning status.
A monitoring report is due in September 2024, and a SACSCOC special committee team will be
on campus in October. Dr. Wicker stressed the importance of having the FY 2022 and 2023 audits
completed and submitted as part of the monitoring report due in September 2024.



Chair Walston inquired into the status of the FY22 and FY23 audits.
Update on Whitney M. Young, Jr. Honors Collegium and Honors Student Policy Update

Dr. Dailey and Dr. Wicker have been collaborating with Dr. Brogan, the new program coordinator,
to redesign, refocus and reimagine the honors program. Proposed changes include increasing the
cumulative GPA requirement, revising the mission and vision statements, and updating the core
values statement, as well as qualifications/eligibility requirements. Dr. Wicker also recommended
that the Board consider developing a dedicated budget for the Honors Collegium and stated that
more details would be provided to the full Board at a later date.

Chair Walston asked where the program is currently housed.
. Advisory Council Charter

Moving ahead, Dr. Wicker provided an update on the Advisory Council Charter development. He
proposed the development of an Advisory Council Charter template, which will be used to
establish advisory councils to support divisions, colleges, and schools. Dr. Wicker welcomed
feedback on the template document.

. Faculty Needs for Fall 2024 and Spring 2025

Dr. Dailey and Dr. Wicker discussed faculty needs for Fall 2024 and Spring 2025, relative to MIP
objective 4.12.1 and SACSCOC requirements.

Update on Faculty Tenure & Promotion

Dr. Dailey noted that the University is still under the guidance of MIP and HB 250, so tenure and
promotion is still paused. He also explained that resuming the process depends heavily upon
having sustainable revenue coming in (as well as meeting other requirements of HB 250 and the
MIP); therefore, reaching the goal of 3,000 students enrolled in the fall is critically important. A
revised tenure and promotion policy is underway.

Chair Walston requested that Dr. Dailey continue to provide updates regarding the status of faculty
tenure and promotion.

Update on Faculty Evaluation Process

Dr. Dailey stated that the annual evaluation process is now a part of the expectations of KSU and
is still part of the MIP. Deans are to have completed their review by April 5, and Dr. Dailey’s tinal
review will occur by April 20. 65-70% of the items are completed. Dr. Dailey expressed concern
about inflation or heavy scoring.

Chair Walston inquired whether the faculty members would have an opportunity at each level of
the evaluation process to clarify or respond to results of each particular section, and to
discrepancies rising to the level of review by the Provost.



Enrollment Projections for Fall 2024

Dr. Wicker reported that the Fall 2024 total enrollment headcount target is 4,348. To date, KSU
has met 1% attainment as to incoming freshmen. Dr. Wicker anticipates that we will meet our
overall goal.

Chair Walston asked whether student services and housing had been coordinated with fall
enrollment projections to avoid issues in accommodating all incoming students.

University Grants Discussion

Dr. Wicker explained that the University is unable to begin the indirect costs and total modified
conversion process until the FY23 audit is completed. Once the audit is completed, though, an
RFP can be issued to secure an outside vendor to assist with the process of transitioning from
indirect costs to total modified costs.

Chair Walston queried why an outside vendor is needed to assist with the process, and whether
the proposed indirect cost rate would be a percentage of salary or of the whole grant. Dr. Dailey
responded that the proposal is to move away from the indirect cost rate into a total modified cost
to achieve a better return on investment.

. Organizational Chart Discussion

Dr. Dailey shared an updated organizational chart for the Division of Academic and Student
Affairs, reflecting the restructuring of colleges.

Chair Walston inquired when a full University-wide organizational chart would be available.
Policies Discussion

Dr. Dailey shared several proposed policies relative to the online program. He anticipated having
the policies finalized by next week so they can formatted into the University’s policy template and
presented for Board review at the upcoming quarterly meeting.

Chair Walston asked whether faculty members would be able to engage in face-to-face teaching as
well as online teaching.

Faculty Accolades

Dr. Dailey recognized the value of celebrating faculty members who are excelling, and shared steps
being taken to recognize those actions and accomplishments. Further, he inquired whether there
might be an opportunity at Board meetings to recognize and celebrate faculty accomplishments
across all colleges, demonstrating appreciation for their contributions to student learning.

Recommended Action Items

All recommended action agenda items were to be presented by Provost Dailey and Vice Provost

Wicker. However, a quorum was lost when Regent Briggs left the meeting to catch a flight. Therefore,

the Committee was unable to take action on the following agenda items.



VI.

Chair Dukes queried whether the items could be presented to the Board at the next meeting for
approval as a standard action item. Attorney Atwell responded affirmatively and stated that any in-
depth discussion of these items should occur at that time.

A. Approval of Dual Credit Tuition Waiver

B. Approval to Create a “Welcome Back” Institutional Aid Scholarship for Previously
Enrolled KSU Adult Learners

C. Approval of Resolution to Confer Earned Academic Degrees

Adjournment

MOTION by Regent Moyer:
Move the Committee to adjourn.

The meeting was adjourned at 12:15 p.m.

Submitted by:

Zachary Atwell, Secretary Regent Herman Walston, EdD, Chair
Board of Regents Academic Affairs Committee
Kentucky State University Board of Regents

Kentucky State University

Approved with no corrections

Approved with corrections



KENTUCKY STATE UNIVERSITY BOARD OF REGENTS
STUDENT AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
REGULAR MEETING

*¥* Meeting Was Conducted in Person and by Teleconference ***

April 4, 2024
9:00 am. EDT

Board of Regents Room
Julian M. Carroll Academic Services Building, 2nd Floor
400 East Main Street
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601
(Primary Physical Location)

MINUTES

Call To Order
The Committee’s Chair, Regent Edward Fields, called the meeting to order at 9:06 a.m.
Roll Call

The Boatd’s Secretary, Zachary Atwell, called the roll:

Regent Edward Fields, Chair Present
Regent Jason Moseley, Co-Chair Not Present
Regent Michael Adams, Jr. Present
Regent Savion Briggs Present

Three (3) Regents were in attendance and present at roll call. A quorum was therefore established.
Approval of the Agenda
MOTION by Regent Adams:

Move the Committee to approve the agenda of the April 4, 2024, meeting of the Student Affairs Committee.
Seconded by Regent Briggs and passed without dissent.

Information Items

All information agenda items were presented by Dr. Stephanie Mayberry, Vice Provost for Student Affairs.

A. AY 24-25 Academic Tatgets Update
Dr. Mayberry reported that over 2000 applications have been received from incoming freshmen and
1005 applications have been accepted, to date. Most of the outstanding applications are incomplete, so
tollow-ups will occur with those students. Dr. Mayberry also provided a breakdown by state, county,

high school, average high school GPA, average ACT, and gender. AY 24-25 academic targets, including
first-to-second-year retention and progression rates, and graduation/completion rates, were also



presented. President Akakpo provided additional perspective and commentary.

Regent Walston queried whether anything was being done to meet the needs of Hispanic students and
assisting them in navigating the system.

Regent Dukes inquired whether KSU’s graduation rates had been compared to those of other HBCU.
AY 24-25 Financial Aid and Scholarships Update

Dr. Mayberry stated that the Department of Education continues to expetience FAFSA delays, which
affect all institutions. However, KSU has alternative plans in place both for newly admitted and
continuing students, should FAFSA delays from the Department of Education continue.

The University recently hired a scholarship coordinator who will be working with the University’s
institutional scholarship as well as the 1890 scholarship. Another push to disseminate information to
students is planned, as not many scholarship applications have been received.

Regent Walston asked whether information about each type of scholarship was provided to incoming
freshmen, and whether the KSU Alumni Association could be utilized to disseminate scholarship
information.

PPL, the foundation arm of LG&E, has awarded KSU with $100,000 to be used for scholarships at a
rate of $20,000 per year for five years. Though particular majors are targeted with this scholarship, the
University has been allowed the flexibility and autonomy to award the funds as needed.

Regent Dukes queried whether the PPL scholarship is separate from athletics and band scholarships.
Dr. Mayberty replied affirmatively.

Regent Walston inquired whether past scholarship recipients were being utilized to recruit new students.
Student Affairs Update

Next, Dr. Mayberry provided updates as to AY 24-25 housing applications, an admitted student
reception/new student otientation being planned for incoming freshmen, and additional fall planning.

The housing application is now live, and students should receive their housing assighments before
leaving this semester. Additionally, an off-campus Housing Fair was held to provide students with all
available Frankfort-area housing options.

All Student Affairs units are now planning their Fall calendars to ensure that students are given a great
experience and the support that they need to be successful at KSU.

Chair Fields asked whether students would register for classes when attending orientation.

Regent Walston requested an update regarding the new dorm, specifically asking how it was being cared
for and maintained by students, and further requested an update as to mental health services provided
to students.

Chair Fields inquired whether there had been a noticeable reduction in marijuana use on campus.



D. SGA/Miss and Mister KSU Results

Dr. Mayberry announced the results of the SGA and Miss and Mister KSU elections, which wete held
the prior week.

Regent Walston asked whether the women’s basketball team had done well and whether they had
received any accolades.

Ms. Aury Rios-Alcantara, the incoming SGA President, will be leading an all-female SGA. Regent Fields
queried when Ms. Rios-Alcantara would be sworn in as the new student Regent and assume her duties
with the Board.

V. Adjournment

MOTION by Regent Briggs:
Move the Committee to adjourn.
Seconded by Regent Adams and passed without dissent.

The meeting was adjourned at 9:43 a.m.

Submitted by:

Zach Atwell, Board Secretary Regent Edward Fields, Chair
Board of Regents Student Affairs Committee
Kentucky State University Board of Regents

Kentucky State University

Approved with no corrections

Approved with corrections



KENTUCKY STATE UNIVERSITY

BOARD OF REGENTS

INFORMATION ITEM 5B(ii)

INFORMATION ITEM:

Since February 28, 2024, several E&G-funded and grant-funded positions have been filled.
FACTS:
Seven (7) positions funded by E&G have been filled, and three (3) grant-funded positions have been filled.

BUDGETARY IMPLICATIONS:

The Kentucky State University Budget Office has approved all filled positions and salary ranges.
Total Compensation for E&G Positions: $386,308.60

Total Compensation for Grant-Funded Positions: ~ $103,335.44

Total Compensation: $489,644.04



Filled Positions From 2/28/2024
Date of Hire Position Title
3/18/24 Dispatcher (FTE)
3/18/24 Financial Aid Counselor
3/18/24 Defense Coordinator
3/18/24 Interim Public Relations Coordinator
4/8/24 Dispatcher (PTE)
4/8/24 Defensive Back Coach
4/8/24 Administrative Assistant I

Total
2/28/24 Farm Technician
3/25/24 Partnership and Research Coordinator
3/25/24 Farm Technician (PT/Temporary)
Total

Total Compensation

Department

Public Safety
Financial Aid
Athletics-Football
Office of the President
Public Safety
Athletics -Football
School of Nursing

College of Agriculture
Grants and Sponsored Programs
College of Agriculture

Funding Source
E&G

E&G

E&G

E&G

E&G

E&G

E& G

Grant
Grant
Grant

v nwn

v n n

Annual Salary
41,600.00
$50,000.00
$45,000.00
$60,000.00
21,300.00
31,000.00
39,390.00

288,290.00
35,100.00
42,016.00

8,775.00

50,791.00

Fringe Benefit 34%

B2 N0 Vo Vo S Vo R Vo IRV SR V2 8

14,144.00
17,000.00
15,300.00
20,400.00

7,242.00
10,540.00
13,392.60

98,018.60
11,934.00
14,285.44

NA

26,219.44

Total Compensation

S 55,744.00
$ 67,000.00
$ 60,300.00
$ 80,400.00
$ 28,542.00
S 41,540.00
$ 52,782.60
$ 386,308.60
S 47,034.00
$ 56,301.44
$ 103,335.44
$ 489,644.04




Staff Holiday Schedule

Fiscal Year 2025
July 1, 2024 — June 30, 2025

Holiday Date(s) Observed Day(s) Observed
Independence Day July 4-5, 2024 Thursday-Friday
Labor Day September 2, 2024 Monday
Thanksgiving November 27 - 29, 2024 Wednesday - Friday
Winter Break December 18, 2024- Wednesday -
January 1, 2025 Wednesday
Martin Luther King Jr. Day January 20, 2025 Monday
President’s Day February 17, 2025 Monday
Spring Break March 10-14, 2025 Monday-Friday
Memorial Day May 24, 2025 Monday
Juneteenth June 19, 2025 Thursday

Proposing to add Friday, July 5, 2025

For FY24, the Governor’s Inauguration Day was added. This is not applicable for
FY25.

Total of 26 holidays for FY24.
Total of 26 holidays for FY25.

| have confirmed that NKU has approved its schedule and that EKU is proposing
theirs. I'm waiting to hear back from the other public universities.

*Note: Dates are subject to change



KENTUCKY STATE UNIVERSITY

BOARD OF REGENTS

ACTION ITEM 6A(i)

ACTION ITEM:

Approval of Dual Credit Tuition Waiver for High School Freshmen and Sophomore Students Eligible for Free &
Reduced Lunch

FACTS:

Kentucky State University has approved the increase of dual credit tuition to $93 per credit hour. A three-credit
hour course will cost a high school student $279.00 and a four-credit hour course is $372.00.

Kentucky Dual Credit Scholarship Program (KRS 164.786) provides access, for eligible students, to two
scholarship funding sources: 1) Dual Credit Scholarship and 2) Work Ready Kentucky Scholarship. The Dual
Credit Scholarship provides funding for high school juniors and seniors to take up to two courses per year in
general education subjects. In addition, the Work Ready Kentucky Scholarship provides funding for high school
freshmen, sophomores, juniors, and seniors to take up to two career & technical educational (CTE) courses per
year. In total, each Kentucky high school student has access to four general education scholarships and eight CTE
scholarships.

Freshmen and Sophomore’s wishing to take general education dual credit courses are responsible for tuition. This
creates a financial burden for students on free and reduced lunch. Other Institutions including University of
Louisville and Morehead State have tuition waivers for these students.

BUDGETARY IMPLICATIONS:

The policy is written to limit the financial burden on both high school students and Kentucky State University. As
the courses are taught by credentialed teachers at their high school, then KSU would not be responsible for paying
the $2,700 adjunct stipend. The only cost to the university would encompass expenses related to textbooks as well
as the utilization of the online learning management system, Canvas.

RECOMMENDATION:

President Koffi C. Akakpo recommends the Board of Regents approve the waiver of tuition for up to two (2)
courses per academic year for dual credit students that meet the following criteria:

»  Freshmen (9™) or Sophomore (10") grade high school student;

* Enrolled in a general education course that is not eligible for a KHEAA Work Ready Scholarship;

* Enrolled in a course taught by a credentialed teacher at their school; and

*  Qualifies for Free & Reduced Lunch in their high school district.



KENTUCKY STATE UNIVERSITY

BOARD OF REGENTS

MOTION:

Approve the waiver of dual credit tuition for high school students who meet the outlined criteria.



KENTUCKY STATE UNIVERSITY

BOARD OF REGENTS

ACTION ITEM 6A(ii)

ACTION ITEM:

Approval to Create a “Welcome Back” Institutional Aid Scholarship for Previously Enrolled Kentucky State
University Adult Learners

FACTS:

Kentucky State University is committed to providing students equal access to opportunities and resources while
working to eliminate barriers. Total undergraduate adult learner enrollment in the Commonwealth of Kentucky
has decreased by 50% since the 2012-2013 academic year. Kentucky needs aggressive recruiting efforts, redesigned
strategies, and retention support to attract and retain adult learner students pursuing a post-secondary credential.
Adult learners are critical to reaching Kentucky’s 60X30 attainment goal, which the Council of Postsecondary
Education has set. One barrier identified by KSU is resolving stop-out students' prior balances before students
may be re-admitted and enrolled.

Findings from our recent cohort management analysis indicated that the average debt for adult learner stop-out
students for cohort years 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021, 2022, and 2023 was $1,577.63. These stop-out adult learners had
a GPA of 2.0 or above.

BUDGETARY IMPLICATIONS:

The policy limits the financial burden on both adult learners and Kentucky State University. The return on this
institutional aid investment has the potential to significantly improve Kentucky State University’s completion rates
per cohort.

RECOMMENDATION:

President Koffi C. Akakpo recommends that the Board of Regents approve the “Welcome Back™ institutional aid
scholarship for delinquent adult learner students who intend to be re-admitted to enroll in a degree-seeking
program. A student must have a grade point average of 2.0 or above, enroll at least part-time, and have the capacity
to pay for courses on a continuing basis. President Akakpo, with recommendations from the Center for Adult
Learning and Governmental Relations Director, will establish an annual institutional aid amount to invest in
welcoming back those cohort-specific adult learners who stopped out. Adult learner students must meet the
following criteria to be eligible for institutional aid:

Student Eligibility:
1. Student must be an adult learner as defined by the Center for Adult Learning and Governmental Relations at
Kentucky State University;

2. Student must complete the Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA) application;



KENTUCKY STATE UNIVERSITY

BOARD OF REGENTS

a. Must be Pell-eligible; or

b. If the student will have an employer paying for tuition, they must present a physical letter from the
employer indicating they will fully cover the student’s tuition billing statement.

Student must have a cumulative grade point average of 2.0 or higher;

Student must be enrolled as at least part-time;

Student must have a delinquent outstanding debt of at least $1,500 or less with Kentucky State University;

Student must intend to complete a degree at Kentucky State University;

Institutional aid is awarded up to $1,500 once in a lifetime to eligible students and is non-refundable; and

Student must be in a cohort to improve Kentucky State University’s completion rates.

© N ok w

MOTION:

Approve the creation of a “Welcome Back” institutional aid scholarship for previously enrolled Kentucky State
University adult learners who meet our cohort management criteria.



KENTUCKY STATE UNIVERSITY

BOARD OF REGENTS

ACTION ITEM 6A(iii)

ACTION ITEM:

Approval of the Kentucky State University Center for Economic Education and Financial Literacy (CEEFL)

FACTS:

Economic, entrepreneurial, and financial education are critical to the success of any individual living in today’s
society. Such an individual can be in a K-12 system, or an adult who just wants to start a new business, or someone
wanting to learn more financial terminology before meeting with a financial advisor. The issue we face in Kentucky
is the low degree of economic and financial literacy that most citizens have attained. All national surveys have
Kentucky scoring in the bottom 50 percent of states, and some surveys have Kentucky in the bottom 20 percent
when the state is scored on financial knowledge.

This is why, in 2018, the Kentucky General Assembly passed and the Governor signed House Bill 132, which
requires financial literacy to be taught to each high school student before graduation. Our Center (CEEFL) will
be providing training to these K-12 teachers, as well as the other groups throughout the Commonwealth. We will
also be bringing teachers to KSU during the summer for training.

Additionally, this Center is needed in response to the Southern Association of Colleges and School Commission
on Colleges (SACSCOC) standard 12.6, which requires institutions to provide information and guidance to help
students make critical decisions with regards to personal finance.

BUDGETARY IMPLICATIONS:

There will be zero budgetary implications to Kentucky State University (KSU). All staff and resources will be
funded by private gifts and grants.

RECOMMENDATION:

President Kofti C. Akakpo recommends the Board of Regents approve the reinstatement of the KSU Center for
Economic Education and Financial Literacy.

MOTION:

Approve the reinstatement and reimplementation of the Kentucky State University Center for Economic
Education and Financial Literacy (CEEFL).



KENTUCKY STATE UNIVERSITY

BOARD OF REGENTS

DELIVERABLES:

Project: Deliver economic and financial education to the Commonwealth. It may be referred to as K—gray (“K
through gray”), that is, from kindergarten through senior years.

Plan Area: Commonwealth of Kentucky
Total Funding Requested Amount: Zero dollars (§0) from KSU budget.

Narrative Rationale: The CEEFL will be charged with educating and promoting economic education and financial
literacy for the seven-county direct service area of Kentucky State University. It will also work to secure grants and
funding to positively impact the Commonwealth from Pikeville to Paducah. The Center will conduct activities
throughout the Commonwealth.

Activity Obijectives: The Center will conduct workshops and seminars throughout the Commonwealth with
economic and financial topics (such as basic economics, entrepreneurship, and personal finance). The Center will
also be an advocate for further policy enhancements for economic and financial curriculum in the K-12 school
system. The Center will conduct research in these education areas and then use this research to promote and
strengthen the economic and financial curriculum. The Center will then have three major missions: conduct research
in the field of economic and financial literacy, promote policies that will strengthen and increase economic and
financial literacy in the Commonwealth, and conduct workshops and seminars on the KSU campus, as well as
throughout the Commonwealth.

Proposed Budget:

The first-year budget will be $140,000, which will be based on donations from individuals and financial institutions,
and will be used toward hiring a researcher and grant writer, a stipend for the Center Director, office supplies,
programming supplies for fall and spring workshops/seminars, and payment of one-quarter time for an
administrative assistant.

TUTION EFFECTIVENESS:

Kentucky State University will benefit from the CEEFL in many ways. For instance, the monetary resources
delivered to the Center will be used for statewide programing, policy development and analysis, and academic
research. Although these activities will be based in the KSU School of Business, they will include faculty and staff
from across the campus.

The statewide workshops with K-12 teachers will be valuable in terms of public relations. With a positive experience
participating in KSU workshops, coupled with follow-up communications, these teachers will be in a good position
to influence many K-12 students to potentially attend Kentucky State University.



KENTUCKY STATE UNIVERSITY

BOARD OF REGENTS

ACTION ITEM 6A(iv)

ACTION ITEM:

Approval of Resolution to Confer Earned Academic Degrees for Fall 2023, Spring 2024, and Summer 2024

FACTS:

In order for students who have completed their course of study by the end of the Fall 2023 and Spring 2024
semesters and Summer 2024 session to receive their degrees, the Board of Regents needs to approve the list of
graduates at the nearest regularly scheduled Board Meeting. Candidates who submitted a graduation application
with less than one discrepancy will be permitted to participate in the graduation ceremony on Friday, May 10, 2024.
If a candidate has more than one discrepancy, the President and Provost must approve the candidate's participation.
Diplomas are issued to graduates after the Office of the Registrar completes the degree conferral process, once the
Division of Academic Affairs determines that a student has met all degree requirements for graduation at the end
of each semester and session.

SUMMARY OF PROGRAMS/ACTIVITIES:

In accordance with The Gold Book: Bylaws of the Kentucky State University Board of Regents, The Board of
Regents grants diplomas and confers degrees upon the recommendation of the President and the Kentucky State
University faculty. There are approximately three hundred twenty-seven (327) candidates for Associate,

Baccalaureate, Mastet's, and/or Doctoral degrees scheduled for the Spring 2024 Commencement Exercises to be
held on Friday, May 10, 2024.

RECOMMENDATION:

President Koffi C. Akakpo recommends that the Board of Regents approve the resolution to confer earned
academic degrees for the Fall 2023, Spring 2024, and Summer 2024 candidates who submitted graduation
applications.

MOTION:

Approve the resolution to confer earned academic degrees for the Fall 2023 and Spring 2024 semesters, and
Summer 2024 session candidates who submitted graduation applications.



B L"‘

e 00000000,
QAR

1886

o, :
w e
w‘kn - u\’"w

BOARD OF REGENTS

RESOLUTION

Whereas, Kentucky State University’s Spring Commencement Exercises are scheduled to take place on Friday, May
10, 2024.

Whereas, there are approximately three hundred twenty-seven (327) prospective graduates at Kentucky State
University who have completed the degree requirements for Associate’s degrees, Bachelor’s degrees, Master’s degrees,
and Doctoral degrees during the Fall 2023 semester, Spring 2024 semester, and Summer 2024 session.

Now, therefore, be it resolved that the degrees to be conferred upon the candidates for graduation by
President Koffi C. Akakpo, upon approval and recommendation by the faculty and appropriate administration,
are hereby approved.

Be it further resolved that the list of graduates may be supplemented or modified as necessary to carry out
this resolution.

Certificate

We, the duly qualified officers of the Kentucky State University Board of Regents, do hereby certify that the
foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the Kentucky State University Board of Regents at its
quarterly meeting on April 19, 2024.

Board Chair Board Secretary
Kentucky State University Board of Regents Kentucky State University Board of Regents




KENTUCKY STATE UNIVERSITY

BOARD OF REGENTS

ACTION ITEM 6A(v)

ACTION ITEM:

Approval of a Resolution to Confer a Posthumous Degree During the Spring 2024 Commencement

FACTS:
The Kentucky State University Board of Regents must approve the granting of a posthumous degree.

SUMMARY OF PROGRAMS/ACTIVITIES:

In accordance with The Gold Book: Bylaws of the Kentucky State University Board of Regents, The Board of
Regents grants diplomas and confers degrees upon the recommendation of the President and the Kentucky State
University faculty. There is one posthumous degree we plan to grant to |Jjjjiij dvting the scheduled Spring
2024 Commencement Exercises to be held on Friday, May 10, 2024.

RECOMMENDATION:

President Koffi C. Akakpo recommends the Board of Regents approve the resolution to confer a posthumous

degree to | N
MOTION:

Approve the resolution to confer a posthumous degree to |Jjjiili] dvring the Spring 2024 Commencement
Ceremony.

THIS ITEM WAS REMOVED FROM THE AGENDA DURING THE MEETING



1886
w e
w‘ko - u\’"w

)

BOARD OF REGENTS

RESOLUTION

Whereas, Kentucky State University’s Spring Commencement Exercises are scheduled to take place on Friday, May
10, 2024.

Whereas, Kentucky State University has determined that | is deserving of a posthumous degree.
Now, therefore, be it resolved that the posthumous degtee to be conferred upon | by President

Koffi C. Akakpo during the Spring Commencement is hereby approved.

Certificate

We, the duly qualified officers of the Kentucky State University Board of Regents, do hereby certify that the
foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the Kentucky State University Board of Regents at its
quarterly meeting on April 19, 2024.

Board Chair Board Secretary
Kentucky State University Board of Regents Kentucky State University Board of Regents

THIS RESOLUTION WAS REMOVED DURING THE MEETING



KENTUCKY STATE UNIVERSITY

BOARD OF REGENTS

ACTION ITEM 6A(vi)

ACTION ITEM:

Approval of Resolution to Confer Honorary Degrees During the Spring 2024 Commencement
FACTS:
The Kentucky State University Board of Regents must approve the granting of honorary degrees.

SUMMARY OF PROGRAMS/ACTIVITIES

In accordance with The Gold Book: Bylaws of the Kentucky State University Board of Regents, The Board of
Regents grants diplomas and confers degrees upon the recommendation of the President and the Kentucky State
University faculty. There are four honorary degrees we plan to grant during the 2024 commencement. The
recipients will be:

- Dr. Aaron Thompson, President of CPE

- Mr. Luther Deaton, President and CEO of Central Bank

- Rev. Dr. C. B. Aiken, Pastor Emeritus of First Baptist Bracktown

- Nurse Virginia Allen, the last living nurse mentioned in Maria Smilios’ book, “The Black Angels: The Untold
Story of the Nurses Who Helped Cure Tuberculosis”

RECOMMENDATION:

President Koffi C. Akakpo recommends the Board of Regents approve the resolution to confer honorary degrees.
MOTION:

Approve the resolution to confer honorary degrees during the Spring 2024 commencement ceremony.



et 00000e,
LA

1886

0, = s
w — &
w‘kn o u\’"‘“

BOARD OF REGENTS

RESOLUTION

Whereas, Kentucky State University’s Spring Commencement Exercises are scheduled to take place on Friday, May
10, 2024.

Whereas, Kentucky State University has determined that the following individuals are deserving of an honorary
degree:

- Dr. Aaron Thompson, President of the Council on Postsecondary Education
- Mzr. Luther Deaton, President and CEO of Central Bank
- Rev. C. B. Aiken, Pastor Emeritus of First Baptist Bracktown

- Nurse Virginia Allen, the last living nurse featured in “The Black Angels: The Untold Story of the Nurses
Who Helped Cure Tuberculosis”

Now, therefore, be it resolved that the honorary degrees to be conferred by President Koffi C. Akakpo
during the Spring Commencement are hereby approved.

Certificate

We, the duly qualified officers of the Kentucky State University Board of Regents, do hereby certify that the
foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the Kentucky State University Board of Regents at its

quarterly meeting on April 19, 2024.

Board Chair Board Secretary
Kentucky State University Board of Regents Kentucky State University Board of Regents




KENTUCKY STATE UNIVERSITY

BOARD OF REGENTS

ACTION ITEM 6B(i)

ACTION ITEM:

Approval of Pending Personnel Actions.
FACTS:

House Bill 250 (hereinafter “HB250”), an act relating to Kentucky State University (hereinafter “KSU”), was signed
into law on April 8, 2022. The Bill requires that the Council approve all KSU expenditures over $5,000. To carry
out this responsibility, the Council adopted a KSU Expenditure Approval Policy, which required all personnel
actions to be approved by the KSU Board of Regents or designated Committee before resulting expenditures will
be approved.

BUDGETARY IMPLICATIONS:

Kentucky State University’s Budget Office has approved all proposed positions and salary ranges.

RECOMMENDATION:

President Koffi C. Akakpo recommends the Board of Regents approve the pending personnel actions.
MOTION:

Approve the pending personnel actions.



E&G-Funded Position Vacancy Authorization

Position Title Department Annual Salary * Fringe Benefits (34%) Total Comp ion New/Existing
Payroll Specialist ($39,000-42,900) Finance and Administration S 42,900 | $ 14,586 | S 57,486 Existing
Veterans Affairs Coordinator($60,000-$70,000) Academic Affairs S 70,000 | $ 23,800 | $ 93,800 New
Accessibility Coordinator ($60,000-$70,000) Student Affairs S 70,000 | $ 23,800 | S 93,800 New
Administrative Assistant Il1-IT ($29,250-$35,100) Information Technology S 35,100 | $ 11,934 | $ 47,034 Existing
Accountant | ($40,000-$50,000) Accounting S 46,500 | $ 15,810 | $ 62,310 Existing
Annual Fund Coordinator ($60,000-$70,000) Institutional Advancment & External Affairs S 70,000 | $ 23,800 | S 93,800 New
Alumni Relations Coordinator ($60,000-$70,000) Institutional Advancment & External Affairs S 70,000 | $ 23,800 | $ 93,800 New

$ 404,500 | $ 137,530 | $ 542,030
Grant Funded-Position Vacancy Authorization

Position Title Department Annual Salary * Fringe Benefits (34%) Total Comp ion New/Existing
Online Admissions Specialist ($45,000-$55,000) Academic Affairs S 55,000.00 | $ 18,700 | $ 73,700.00 New
Online Registrar Specialist (545,000-$55,000) Academic Affairs S 55,000.00 | $ 18,700 | $ 73,700.00 New
Social Media Manager ($50,000-55,000) Collefe of Agriculture S 55,000.00 [ $ 18,700 | $ 73,700.00 New
Enterprise System Developer ($60,000-$70,000) Information Technology S 70,000.00 | $ 23,800 | $ 93,800.00 Existing
Total $ 235,000.00 | $ 79,900 | $ 314,900.00




KENTUCKY STATE UNIVERSITY

BOARD OF REGENTS

ACTION ITEM 6Bii)

ACTION ITEM:

Approval of Expenditures for Online Program Marketing and Enrollment Management Contract
FACTS:

The University previously issued RFP 24-02, which was a request for online program marketing and enrollment
management services. KSU reviewed numerous bids and is now ready to award the contract to the selected vendor.

BUDGETARY IMPLICATIONS:

The cost of this contract cannot be fully estimated at this time, as the cost is primarily driven by enrollment.
However, the cost will likely be around $22,000,000 for five (5) years. This is in line with the estimates of CPE and
Magellan.

RECOMMENDATION:

President Koffi C. Akakpo recommends the Board of Regents approve the expenditures for the online program
marketing and enrollment management contract.

MOTION:

Approve the expenditures for the online program marketing and enrollment management contract.



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

BETWEEN KENTUCKY STATE UNIVERSITY

AND
THE FOUNDATION, INC.
THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING ("MOU") is entered into as of this day of April, 2024, by and

between Kentucky State University (hereinafter referred to as "KSU" or “University”) and the
Foundation, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "Foundation").

KSU and the Foundation shall work collaboratively to enhance the mission and priorities of Kentucky State
University.

The Foundation, a Kentucky nonprofit corporation, operates independently from KSU, serving to advance the
University's interests through fundraising efforts and asset stewardship. It is recognized as a tax-exempt charity
under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Foundation's primary objective is to provide sustainable
financial support to KSU, supplementing state assistance to enable the University and its students to achieve
excellence.

The Foundation is governed by a Board of Directors consisting of 15 members, who shall be appointed by the KSU
Board of Regents to serve three-year terms. The Board of Regents may elect to expand the number of Directors at
any time through formal action. Members of the Board of Directors shall serve without compensation, dedicating
their time and expertise to secure a prosperous future for KSU. The Foundation holds its own Articles of
Incorporation approved by its Board of Directors and may establish its own bylaws, policies, and procedures.

In the event of the Foundation's dissolution, all assets shall, at the sole discretion of the Board of Regents, revert to
Kentucky State University or the University’s successor Foundation.

The President of Kentucky State University serves as the primary fundraiser for KSU, with the Foundation
supplementing these efforts as directed by the University.

The Vice President of Institutional Advancement and External Relations serves as the Chief Executive Officer of the
Foundation, overseeing its operations and strategic initiatives.

The Foundation shall maintain its own directors and officers (D&O) insurance for protection against liabilities arising
from its activities.

The Foundation is obligated to adhere to all current and future policies and procedures of KSU. The Foundation
shall not charge more than a 1.0% management fee.

The Foundation shall provide quarterly reports to the Investment and Advancement Committee of the Board of
Regents and shall present annually to the Board of Regents.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Memorandum of Understanding to be executed by their duly
authorized officers as of the day and date first above written.

[Signature lines for authorized representatives of Kentucky State University and the Foundation,
Inc.]



. &

1886

, =
"“Rn = u"".

o, 4

BOARD OF REGENTS

ORDER

By order of the Board of Regents of Kentucky State University, Dr. Koffi C. Akakpo, President of Kentucky State
University, is hereby authorized to formulate a new Kentucky State Universify Foundation 501(c)(3) partner for the
purpose of solely supporting the mission and students of Kentucky State University while the KSU Foundation, Inc.
continues its lawsuit against Frankfort News Media, LLC. Upon conclusion of the lawsuit, or when the Board of
Trustees for the KSU Foundation, Inc. agrees to the terms of the new MOU, the new Foundation partner can be
disbanded through action by the Board of Regents.

Whereas:

* The KSU Foundation, Inc. was founded by the KSU Board of Regents in 1968 to raise funds for the sole benefit
of the students and mission of Kentucky State University.

* The KSU Foundation, Inc. Board was appointed by the KSU Board of Regents until 1989.

* Since 1989, new Trustees of the KSU Foundation, Ine. have been appomted by the Trustees who were last
appointed by the KSU Board of Regents.

* The KSU Foundation, Inc. and its entire Board of Trustees have been invited to present to the KSU Board of
Regents’ Investment and Advancement Committee for the purpose of sharing operational information.

» The KSU Foundation, Inc. has not shared requested financial information with Kentucky State University or the
Board of Regents since June 2023.

» The KSU Foundation, Inc. has not provided the confirmation on restrictions on restricted and scholarship
accounts held on behalf of Kentucky State University.

» The KSU Foundation, Inc. has spent funds that should benefit the students of Kentucky State University fighting
an open records lawsuit against the wishes of Kentucky State University.

Pending the signing of a new Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the KSU Foundation, Inc., all
disbursements from any accounts established or maintained by Kentucky State University, or any accounts into
which deposits have been made by Kentucky State University or any of its agents (current or past), are to be halted.
This includes funds transmitted from Kentucky State University to the KSU Foundation, Inc. originating from
funders or donors. No expenditures shall be made from these accounts without prior written approval from Dr. Koffi

C. Akakpo.

The following are exceptions to this directive:

1. Accounts at the KSU Foundation, Inc. that were established by individual donors with signed agreements



directly with the KSU Foundation, Inc., prior to April 19, 2024.
2. Accounts belonging to Greek Life Organizations.
3. Membership Organizations such as the KSUNAA.
All other accounts are prohibited from making any expenditures or disbursements without Dr. Koffi C. Akakpo's

prior written approval.

So ORDERED on this 19th day of April, 2024.

Chair, Board of Regents
Kentucky State University

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE BOARD ORDER PASSED AT THE MEETING OF THE BOARD
OF REGENTS OF KENTUCKY STATE UNIVERSITY, WHICH WAS HELD AT 400 EAST MAIN
STREET, FRANKFORT, KY 40601 ON APRIL 19, 2024.





